

# **SCHOOL COUNCIL CONSTITUTION**

## **Developed by the 2018-2019 Council Review Committee**

Parents – C. Miles, R. Abraham, E. Morgan Principals – T. Dunn, J. Eygenraam Presented on May 23, 2019

## Updated by the 2020-2021 Council Review Committee

Parents - C. Miles, R. Abraham, S. Shakeel, J. Strong
Principals – T. Dunn, J. Eygenraam
Presented on February 4, 2021

## Supported by the following documents:

York Region District School Board Policy and Procedure #262.0, School Councils

York Region District School Board School Council Code of Ethics

York Region District School Board School Council Handbook (2015)

The Ministry of Education's School Councils: A Guide for Members (2002)

Current Version Approved by the Stonehaven Elementary School Council on April 1, 2021

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

Section A: Overview	
Name and Address	3
Purpose of School Council	3
Responsibilities of School Council	3
Duties of School Council	4
Section B: Composition of School Council	
Membership of School Council	5
School Council Sub-Committees	6
Election of School Council Members	7
Procedures for Election by Ballot	8
Executives – Roles and Duties by Position Title	9
Resignation of a Council Member	10
Removal of a Council Member	10
By-Laws: Filling Vacancies	13
By-Laws: Conflict of Interest	13
By-Laws: Conflict Resolution	13
By-Laws: Student Representative	13
Section C: Meetings, Financial Documents and Communication	
Meetings	12
Financial Documents	13
Correspondence	14
Constitutional Amendments	15
Section D: Addendum	
School Council Code of Ethics	16
School Council Sub-Committees Terms of Reference	13

# STRON EMANTEN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

# SCHOOL COUNCIL CONSTITUTION

## **SECTION A: OVERVIEW**

### 1. Name and Address

- a. The committee will be known as "Stonehaven Elementary School Council" and may be referenced to as the "Council."
- b. The mailing address is:
   Stonehaven Elementary School Council
   C/O Stonehaven Elementary School
   875 Stonehaven Avenue
   Newmarket, ON L3X 2K3

## 2. Purpose of School Council

The Stonehaven Elementary School Council, as authorized under Ontario Regulation 612/00, School Councils and Parent Involvement Committees, is an inclusive and active body that serves as a means for improving the academic experiences for all students at Stonehaven Elementary School. The Council, and its members, functions as a bridge – connecting parents, staff and students – in an effort to promote collaboration while celebrating diversity. This is done with the purpose of fostering partnerships that enhance the quality of education for all students. As a part of its function, the Council will fundraise to support school initiatives, submit funding applications on behalf of the school community and commit to maintaining accurate documentation of the year's activities.

### 3. Responsibilities of School Council

- a. As a unified committee, Stonehaven Elementary School Council is responsible for:
  - i. Following the operating guidelines outlined by the York Region District School Board Policy and Procedures #262.0, School Councils
  - ii. Adhering to the York Region District School Board's School Council Code of Ethics (See Section D: Addendum, School Council Code of Ethics)
  - Fulfilling their role as outlined in the York Region District School Board's School Council Handbook
  - iv. Abiding by all other relevant Board policies and procedures
  - v. Annually signing the School Council Agreement to demonstrate your understanding and commitment to these responsibilities

## 4. Duties of School Council

As discussed in the School Council Handbook, Section 3.2.12, the members of School Council are responsible to the parents they represent and shall:

- a. Regularly attend School Council meetings;
- b. Participate in information and training programs (if desired);
- c. Act as a supportive link between the School Council and the community;
- d. Encourage and support the engagement of all parents within the community;
- e. Assist with tasks of the School Council;
- f. Participate on sub-committees, if desired;
- g. Maintain a school-wide perspective on issues;
- h. Adhere to the School Council Code of Ethics.

## **SECTION B: Composition of School Council**

## 1. Membership of School Council

School Council is composed of the following members, each of whom holds their position for a one-year term. Members may be re-elected. Elections must be held during the first 30 days of the start of the school year. Vacant positions do not prevent the School Council from functioning and may be filled by election or appointment at any time during the academic year. Trustees may not be a member of Council, as per Regulation 612/00 3(1)(6).

## Parent Members (eight to sixteen)

- o minimum of 8 members, maximum of 16 members
- elected by secret ballot at the first meeting of the year
- are all voting members
- the Executives Co-Chairs, Secretary and Treasurer are included in this category and count toward the 16 member quota
- the Co-Chairs, to a maximum of two, must be parents at the school and may not be employed by the York Region District School Board
- parents may be employees of the York Region District School Board, but may not be employed as teachers or support staff at Stonehaven Elementary School (school assistants are exempt from the limitations of this provision as per YRDSB school Council handbook p.32)

## **Teaching Staff Representative (one)**

- elected by the teachers at the school
- voting member

## Additional Support Staff Representative (one)

- elected by the additional support staff at the school
- may not be a Principal, Vice Principal or teacher
- voting member

#### **Student Representative (one)**

- o appointed by the Principal(s) through consultation with the Student Council
- voting member

## **Community Representative (one)**

- elected by secret ballot by members of Council
- cannot be an employee of the school, but may be an employee of the Board provided they disclose their employment before their appointment
- voting member

## Principals or Designate (one to two)

non-voting member(s)

#### 2. School Council Sub-Committees

The School Council Sub-Committees make recommendations to the Council as a whole. Sub-committees are designed to support the sustainable operation of the School Council while providing greater opportunity for parent involvement. Members of the sub-committees may be self-nominated or appointed. Each sub-committee will have a Chair. Sub-committee members need not be a voting parent member of the School Council. The Chair of the sub-committee is responsible for providing updates at Council meetings when needed. See Section D: Addendum, Sub-Committees for Terms of Reference.

- a. **Volunteer Committee** responsible for the recruitment of volunteers throughout the academic year and assists with the annual election process of Council members. The Principal or designate is a member of this committee.
- b. **Fundraising Committee** responsible for overseeing the operation of School Council fundraising initiatives.
- c. Inclusivity and Engagement Committee responsible for providing insight, guidance and support with activities, events and procedures designed to increase community involvement and help families understand how valuable they are to our school. There is a focus on fostering a safe and inclusive environment for racialized or marginalized members of our community, and a celebration of our overall diversity. We recognize and support the presence of a wide range of human qualities, which include, but are not limited to, ancestry, culture, ethnicity, gender, gender identity, language, physical and intellectual ability, race, religion, sex, sexual orientation, and socio-economic status.
- d. **Food Committee** responsible for overseeing the successful operation of the various lunch programs, as well as the snack program in the office.
- e. **Additional Committees** may be formed throughout the year, as necessary, with approval from Council and with clearly defined Terms of Reference.

#### 3. Election of School Council Members

- a. The election process is planned by the Principal(s) or the designate with the assistance of the Volunteer Committee (see Section B: School Council Sub-Committees, Point 2a).
- b. Elections shall take place within the first 30 days of the start of the school year.
- c. Each parent/guardian who would like to be a voting member of Council must be nominated or self-nominated in writing, must have a child registered at the school and must declare if they are an employee of the school board.
- d. At the election, applicants are given an opportunity to explain their reason for wanting to hold a voting member position, as well as outline any skills they could offer to the Council if selected as a member.
- e. Candidates must be present at the meeting during the election to be appointed a position on Council. Exceptions will be made only in extraneous circumstances where unforeseeable events take place, such as severe illness, family death and/or accident. In these events, if another attendee is familiar with the person who was unable to attend due to the unforeseeable event, the attendee may nominate the candidate and provide a character reference for them in their absence.
- f. Each parent/guardian of a student enrolled at the school is entitled to one vote for each vacant position on School Council.
- g. Members of the Volunteer Committee may not run for the position of School Council Chair due to potential conflict of interest at the time of election.
- h. Elections are conducted by secret ballot.
- i. The position of Chair can be held for up to three years in total. The duration is a sum total and accounts for all years served regardless of whether or not they are consecutive. In the event that there are no volunteers who wish to hold the position, other than a volunteer who has already completed their three-year-term, the willing volunteer will become the "Chair, interim." This means that the vacant post is filled temporarily, pending a permanent replacement. The school will notify the community of this open position. If a candidate who meets the requirements comes forward, they will be appointed the role. The calculation of terms is from this day forward and does not take into account the years served prior to the 2021-2022 academic school year.

## Procedures for Election by Secret Ballot at the First Council Meeting of the School Year:

- 1. School Council nomination forms will be distributed to students during the first week of school as a part of the "Welcome" package distributed by the school administration.
- 2. The Principal(s) or designate will follow up with each candidate to confirm their understanding about the duties of the role, thank them for offering to volunteer their time, remind them that they must be present at the meeting to qualify as a candidate, and ask if they have any questions about the election process or School Council (this step helps ensure the intent of candidates).
- 3. Fourteen days prior to the election, an email will be sent to families from the Principal(s) or the designate as a reminder that submissions are due for anyone who may be interested in holding a Council position. The date, time and location of the elections will be included in this email.
- 4. Elections will be conducted electronically at the first Council meeting of the year by secret ballot using Google Survey which will be created and administered by the Principal(s) or designate.
- 5. Selection of candidates will follow this order:
  - a. Parent members (minimum 8, maximum 16)
  - b. Co-Chairs
  - c. Treasurer
  - d. Secretary
  - e. Community Representative
- 6. The parent members will be selected first. Prior to the start of voting, candidates will have an opportunity to introduce themselves and share their reasons for interest to those in attendance.
- 7. All parents of students at the school who are present at the meeting will cast their ballot via the election survey on one or more school provided computers. Voting is private and anonymous. A list will be cross-referenced to ensure only one ballot was cast per person.
- 8. Candidates will be listed on the ballot in alphabetical order by last name.
- 9. If the number of candidates is equal to or less than the maximum number of positions, all candidates shall be acclaimed.
- 10. Voters must be present at the Council meeting to vote.
- 11. In the case of a vote, two predetermined members of the Volunteer Committee and the Principal(s) or designate will review the results which the Principal(s) or designate will share at the meeting.
- 12. Council members elect the executive positions (YRDSB Handbook, 3.2.3.2). The newly appointed parent members and the other voting members will elect the Co-Chairs using a secret ballot. Prior to voting, candidates will have an opportunity to share their reasons for interest in the position. The results of the election will be shared at the Council meeting by the Principal(s) or designate.
- 13. The Treasurer, the Secretary, and the Community Representative, respectively, will be elected by the voting members following the same procedure used for the selection of the Council Co-Chairs stated in Step 12.
- 14. The Co-Chairs will share the results with the school community through an email submitted on their behalf by the office (this email is an opportunity for the Chairs to introduce themselves to the school community, thank the members of Council for their volunteer efforts and highlight upcoming events hosted by School Council).

## 4. Executives – Roles and Duties by Position Title

#### a. Co-Chairs

- i. Carry out tasks in accordance with Board policies and procedure, and the School Council's constitution and by-laws
- ii. Working with the Principal(s) or the designate, Co-Chairs will call school council meetings, prepare the agenda and chair the meetings (for a better understanding of the approval process for the agenda or protocols for meetings, please see Section C: Composition of School Council, Meetings)
- iii. Communicate with the Principals or the designate, as required
- iv. Working with the Principal(s) or the designate, ensure that minutes are recorded by the Secretary, parents are consulted and fundraising meets Board policies
- v. Working with the Principal(s) or designate, ensure the by-laws, School Council Constitution and Principal profiles are reviewed by the School Council annually, or sooner if deemed necessary, and are in compliance with all applicable Board policies, procedures and guidelines and take into consideration best practices outlined in this document.
- vi. Co-chairs must work in collaboration to ensure the above roles are fulfilled

## b. Treasurer

- i. Working with the Principal(s) or designate to ensure the financial records for the School Council are up-to-date
- ii. Provide financial reports ahead of the Council meeting or when needed
- iii. Explain the financial report at the School Council meetings

## c. Secretary

- i. Record minutes for the School Council meetings
- ii. The minutes may be written as notes or following Robert's Rules of Order
- iii. Provide the meeting minutes to the Executives and the Principals for preliminary review within one week of the meeting date, and then the Council for review the week following. Minutes will be approved at the following Council meeting.
- iv. For a better understanding of the approval process for the minutes, please see Section C: Composition of School Council, Meetings, Minutes

## 5. Resignation of a Council Member

A vacancy does not prevent Council from exercising its duties. Any Council member, with the exception of the Principals or designate, may resign from their position at any time during their one-year term. Resignations will be accepted in writing and the Letter of Resignation shall be addressed to both the Co-Chairs and the Principal(s) or designate. Should a Co-Chair decide to resign, the letter shall be addressed to the Principal(s) or designate. Vacancies may be filled according to the School Council by-laws (see Section B: Composition of School Council, By-Laws, Point 1, for details).

## 6. Removal of a Council Member

An elected member cannot be revoked of their position or voting status. According to the Ministry of Ontario, School Councils: A Guide for Members, Section 5.6, "It is important to remember that Ontario Regulation 612/00 contains no provision for the discretionary removal of a duly elected or appointed school council member before the end of his or her term. By-laws created by a school council, or policies established by the board, must not conflict with the provisions of the regulation. A school council member is, therefore, entitled to hold his or her position until the term expires." In instances where a Council member fails to fulfil their duties and responsibilities, the Code of Ethics and Dispute Resolution process outlined below will be implemented.

## **Code of Ethics and Dispute Resolution**

(as per The Ministry of Education's School Councils: A Guide for Members, Section 5.6)

- All Council members are encouraged to be familiar with their Council's expectations
  of members and be prepared to make a commitment to conduct the Council's
  business in a professional manner
- If there is a breach of Code of Ethics, or failure to adhere to policies and procedures and/or failure to perform the duties as outlined by position title, the Principal(s) or designate and Co-Chairs will speak with the member to ensure they understand the expectations of their role
- There may be instances when an elected member fails, on a regular basis, to attend School Council meetings, leaving the Council without the quorum required to hold a meeting. To deal with this possibility, the Co-Chairs and Principal(s) may speak with the individual member to help them determine if they are able or willing to continue to serve on the School Council. In many cases, the member may not be aware that their absence is affecting the Council's ability to carry out its mandate under the regulation. On being made aware of this consequence, the member may be willing to make regular attendance a priority. In other cases, the individual may decide to resign from the Council, thereby creating a vacancy in its membership.

## **By-Laws:**

## 1) Filling Vacancies on School Council

- a) Should an elected School Council position become vacant before the next election, the Council shall fill the vacant position by appointment from the non-elected candidates from the previous election.
- b) If the previous candidates are no longer interested in the vacant position, Council will notify the school community about the opening and request that parents/guardians who may be interested submit their name for consideration. An election by secret ballot will occur at the next Council meeting and the newly elected candidate will hold that position until the following elections, when Council is dissolved. Every attendee with a student at the school, as well as the Council members in attendance, have a vote for this election.
- c) Quorum will exclude vacancies; however, the minimum number of parent members on Council must still be met for Council to operate (see Section B: Composition of School Council, Point 1, for details).

## 2) Conflict of Interest

- a) Each school council member shall avoid situations that could result in an inconsistency between the overall goals and vision of the School Council and a personal or vested interest that may arise in connection with his or her duties as a School Council member.
- b) A conflict of interest could be actual, perceived or potential.
- c) Should an issue or an agenda item arise during a Council meeting where a council member is in a conflict of interest situation, he or she shall declare conflict of interest immediately and decline from the discussion and resolution.

## 3) Conflict Resolution during a Council Meeting

- a) Council members and attendees will demonstrate respect for each other at all times. If any person becomes disruptive during a meeting, the Co-Chairs, Principal(s) or designate will ask for order.
- b) If all efforts to resolve an order fail, the Co-Chairs and/or Principal(s) or designate may ask the person(s) to leave the meeting, citing the reasons for the request.
- c) The removal of a council member or attendee from one meeting does not prevent them from participating in future meetings.
- d) The incident shall be recorded and submitted to the Superintendent of Schools within one week of the meeting date.
- e) When someone has been removed from a meeting, the Co-Chair and/or Principal(s) or designate shall request that a private meeting be held to help resolve the issue of concern.
- f) An independent third party, such as a Board official or other mutually agreed upon party, may be called upon to help mediate the private meeting.
- The agreed upon conflict resolution shall be put in writing, signed and respected by all parties to the agreement.

#### 4) Student Representative

a) When a student is available and willing to fill this position, we vow to welcome, support and guide them in this leadership role. We accept this "optional" position on our Council.

## Section C: Meetings, Financial Documents and Communication

## 1. Meetings

Council will hold at least four meetings per year in a meeting place that is open and accessible to the public. The first meeting will be held within the first 30 days of the school year and all activities at the meeting must be in compliance with Board policies. Each meeting will begin with a reading of the Meeting Norms and the Purpose of School Council (see Section A: Overview, Point 2). Following best practices, Robert's Rules of Order may help School Councils work effectively together (YRDSB, School Council Handbook, 25) and "often expedite a meeting as voting takes less time to reach" a decision (Ministry of Education: School Councils, A Guide for Members, 8.9). Agendas, minutes and meeting dates will be shared with the school community.

### a. Agenda

- i. The Co-Chairs and Principal(s) or designate will set the agenda ten days prior to the meeting date and, when possible, will meet with the Executives to review the agenda
- ii. Requests for items to be added to the agenda may be made in writing to the Co-Chairs up to two weeks prior to the meeting date and will be reviewed by the Executives and Principal(s) or designate at the Agenda Setting meeting to ensure the requested item meets the Council criteria as a school-wide topic
- iii. An electronic copy of the agenda will be posted on the School Council webpage (paper copies will be made available by request)

#### b. Quorum

- i. Decisions are made only when quorum is met (50% + 1 of the voting members are present and the majority of those present are parent members)
- ii. If quorum is not met, decisions must be deferred until the next Council meeting or, in extreme circumstances, voting may occur via email when decisions are needed prior to the next meeting date
- iii. A meeting may still proceed as planned even if a quorum is not met, provided no decisions are made

#### c. Minutes

- i. Minutes shall be prepared by the Secretary and submitted to the Executives and Principals or designate for preliminary review within one week of the meeting date
- Following review by the Executives and Principals or designate, the minutes will be shared electronically with the Council within two weeks of the meeting date to ensure accuracy
- iii. Council may decide if the minutes will be approved at the following meeting or electronically. If approved electronically, the secretary will send the minutes to the council members for their REVIEW. Council members will have one week to offer suggestions for change. If additions and/or revisions are required, the secretary will update the file and then resend the document to the council for APPROVAL. The first voting member to reply via email with a message of approval will be recorded as the

motioner. The second voting member to reply via email with a message of approval will be recorded as the seconder. Once quorum is reached via electronic replies from voting council members, the minutes are adopted and can be posted to the school council website for public access. At the following council meeting, the Chair or secretary will announce that the minutes were passed over email, and at that point they can be entered into the record as officially approved.

- iv. Minutes shall be written as an overview of the topics discussed at the meeting and shall include the motions, decisions and actions taken by Council
- v. The Principal(s) will ensure the minutes are accessible to the public and will remain on file for four years

#### 2. Financial Documents

Ownership of School Council funds belong, legally, to the Board (see School Councils: A Guide for Members published by The Ministry of Education). All fundraising activities and expenditures must be conducted in accordance with Board policies. Particular attention needs to be paid to policies on purchasing and conflicts of interest.

#### a. Financial Records

- i. The Treasurer is responsible for keeping financial records during their term of office
- ii. The Treasurer is responsible for the information contained within the financial records and for this reason, shall be the only one with editing rights to all financial documents
- iii. The Executives, School Council electorate and school community members may have viewing rights to the financial documents
- iv. The Treasurer will obtain current financials from the school and present a report ahead of the Council meeting, or when needed
- v. The Treasurer will present the financial documents at the School Council meetings and share the documents with the office administration so they can be posted publicly on the school webpage following the meeting and after approval from Council
- vi. At the end of the year, the Treasurer will submit an annual report which will be posted publicly on the school webpage
- vii. The Principals will ensure that hard copies of the financial records are accessible to the public in the school office where they will remain on file for seven years
- viii. Copies of the financial records shall be made available at no cost for review by parents/guardians of students enrolled at Stonehaven Elementary School
- ix. All financial records are to be transferred to the newly appointed treasurer

### b. Signing of Cheques

- i. Cheques must have two signing officers, one of whom must be the Principal(s)
- ii. The Treasurer must be notified in writing when a cheque is signed without their presence. Council members are not permitted to sign cheques.

#### c. Financial Allocations

- i. All allocations are to be recorded on the financial records and in the minutes
- ii. A listing of all allocations made throughout the year will be posted at the bottom of the treasurer's reports as a continuous record of appropriations and shared with the administrative assistant as they arise.
- iii. Should an allocation be considered outside of a Council meeting, voting may occur via email and then recorded in the financial records and minutes accordingly
- iv. In the rare instance where funds are required and there is not enough time to wait for Council's approval, all of the Executives and Principal(s) may agree to approve the funds temporarily until permission can be obtained from the Council. The value is nominal and will be established by Council at the first or second meeting of the year by vote. In this case, the Principal(s) or designate must agree in writing to cover the funds with the school money, in the event that Council does not approve the allocation.
- v. All funds collected by the School Council should be spent in that academic year. Funds may remain in the account during transition from one year to the next if they are allocated to a project or cause that will require funding in September or October of the following year. This exception is done with the understanding that Council may not have the ability to raise the monies necessary to support the project, if these funds were not carried forward from the previous academic year.

## 3. Correspondence

- a. Copies of formal correspondence written on behalf of School Council will be kept on file in a centrally available place for the Executives, Principals or designate to access, and may be made available to all members of the School Council upon request
- b. A contacts file will be maintained by all members of the Executives to ensure suppliers and/or stakeholders can be easily reached by members of the Council, sub-committees or office administration
- c. Confidential information may be redacted under MFIPPA
- d. Formal and/or official correspondence should be done whenever possible using the School Council email address provided by the Board
- e. Open communication about areas of concern help to strengthen the partnership among members of the community, the school and the Board. Principals, as the agents of the Board within each school, are the primary contacts as sources of information. School Councils may make recommendations to the principal of the school. They may also make recommendations to the School Board by submitting them in writing to the superintendent of schools.

## 4. Constitutional Amendments

- a. The School Council Constitution shall be reviewed at least once during the academic year and may be reviewed more often if the need arises
- b. An interim sub-committee will be formed to conduct the review
- c. The sub-committee must consist of at least two parents and the Principal(s), but may consist of more members (parents/members need not be on Council)
- d. Proposed amendments to the Constitution will be shared with the Council for ratification
- e. Notice of the motion for an amendment will be made at the meeting and voting for that motion will occur at the next meeting
- f. Approval of ratification is made by a motion and requires quorum (50% + 1) to be passed
- g. A special Council meeting may be called to review the proposed changes, or a discussion may occur during a regular Council meeting, if time permits

## **SECTION D: Addendum**

#### 1. School Council Code of Ethics

The following code of ethics, derived from Ministry guidelines, privacy and legal consultations made by the Board, may be used by school councils in an attempt to outline expectations for members and as a guideline for behaviour.

- A member shall consider the best interests of all students.
- A member shall be guided by the school and the Board's mission, vision and values.
- A member shall act within the limits of the roles and responsibilities of a school council, as identified in the Education Act, its regulations, and the applicable constitution and/or by-law(s) and procedures.
- A member shall become familiar with the school's policies and operating practices and act in accordance with them.
- A member shall maintain the highest standards of integrity.
- A member shall recognize and respect the personal integrity of each member of the school community.
- A member shall conduct themselves in accordance with the Board's Equity and Inclusive Education policy and procedure.
- A member shall treat all other members with respect and allow for diverse opinions to be shared without interruption.
- A member shall encourage a positive environment in which individual contributions are encouraged and valued.
- A member shall acknowledge democratic principles and accept the consensus of the council.
- A member shall respect the confidential nature of some school business and respect limitations this may place on the operation of the school council.
- A member shall not disclose confidential information.
- A member shall act in accordance with relevant laws, including Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (MFIPPA), and relevant Board policies and procedures.
- A member shall advise the Principal immediately if the member believes that there may have been a privacy breach.
- A member shall abide by applicable laws and policies with respect to access, use or disclosure of Board data and information.
- A member shall limit discussions at school council meetings to matters of concern to the school community as a whole.
- A member shall use established communication channels when questions or concerns arise.
- A member shall promote high standards of ethical practice within the school community.
- A member shall declare any conflict of interest.
- A member shall not accept any payment or benefit financially through school council involvement.

# 2. School Council Sub-Committee Terms of Reference

# a) Volunteer Committee

Туре	Standing
Purpose	Assist with the recruitment and retention of volunteers throughout the academic year and assist the Principals with the annual election process of School Council members.
Scope	This committee has the ability to recruit volunteers for school council events and initiatives, to contact volunteers to request their assistance with various events and/or tasks, and to work with the Principals on the election.
Authority	Makes recommendations to the Council and implements the agreed to plans
Membership	Principals or designate Parent volunteers (may, but need not be, Council members)
Meeting Arrangements	As determined by the Volunteer Committee - the agreed to meeting schedule will be shared with Council at the second Council meeting of the year
Reporting	Reports to the committee as a whole during School Council meetings
Resources and Budget	Provided on an as-needed basis through approval from Council
Deliverables	<ul> <li>Maintain a volunteer database</li> <li>Ensure volunteers are available for the various events and/or initiatives</li> <li>Increase outreach to include new volunteers</li> <li>Identify new opportunities for prospective volunteers who work full-time</li> <li>Work in partnership with the other sub-committees to ensure they have volunteer support for their initiatives</li> </ul>

# b) Fundraising Committee

Туре	Standing
Purpose	Responsible for overseeing the operation of School Council fundraising initiatives
Scope  This committee has the ability to source fundraising ideas, make recommendations to Council regarding fundraising initiatives, and assist with the implementation of the agreed-to fundraising plans	

Authority	Makes recommendations to the Council and implements the agreed to plans
Membership	Anyone
Meeting Arrangements	As determined by the Fundraising Committee - the agreed to meeting schedule will be shared with Council at the second Council meeting of the year
Reporting	Reports to the committee during School Council meetings
Resources and Budget	Provided on an as-needed basis through approval from Council
Deliverables	<ul> <li>Oversee the successful operation of School Council fundraising initiatives</li> <li>Provide feedback regarding the various initiatives (i.e., a SWOT analysis)</li> <li>Source and suggest new fundraising ideas</li> </ul>

# c) Inclusivity and Engagement Committee

Туре	Standing
Purpose	Responsible for providing insight, guidance and support with activities, events and procedures designed to increase community involvement and help families understand how valuable they are to our school. There is a focus on fostering a safe and inclusive environment for racialized members of our community, and a celebration of our overall diversity. We recognize and support the presence of a wide range of human qualities, which include, but are not limited to, ancestry, culture, ethnicity, gender, gender identity, language, physical and intellectual ability, race, religion, sex, sexual orientation, and socio-economic status.
Scope	This committee has the ability to recommend and, with approval from Council, plan and implement communication collateral, activities and events that celebrate our school community's diverse culture
Authority	Makes recommendations to the Council and implements the agreed to plans
Membership	Anyone
Meeting Arrangements	As determined by the Inclusivity Committee - the agreed to meeting schedule will be shared with Council at the second Council meeting of the year
Reporting	Reports to the committee as a whole during School Council meetings

Resources and Budget	Provided on an as-needed basis through approval from Council
Deliverables	<ul> <li>Create initiatives that foster greater community involvement by members of our school community</li> <li>Plan initiatives that inform, foster collaboration, celebrate and acknowledge diversity</li> <li>Increase a sense of belonging and value amongst our students, their families and our staff, across cultural, religious, gender, ethnic backgrounds and abilities</li> <li>Actively work towards establishing a school environment that values diversity, and does not tolerate anti-racist views or practices</li> </ul>

## d) Food Committee

Туре	Standing
Purpose	Responsible for overseeing the successful operation of the various lunch programs, as well as the snack programs
Scope	This committee has the ability to speak with suppliers to coordinate meals and submit orders, answer questions from parents regarding the food programs, source and suggest new food suppliers if the school is looking to change a vendor, monitor the popcorn inventory and order more popcorn when needed, monitor the fresh fruit program in the office and, working with the Volunteer Committee, ensure volunteers are available for the preparation and/or distribution of food (i.e. pizza, popcorn, fruit, etc.)
Authority	Makes recommendations to the Council and implements the agreed to plans
Membership	Anyone
Meeting Arrangements	As determined by the Food Committee - the agreed to meeting schedule will be shared with Council at the second Council meeting of the year
Reporting	Reports to the committee as a whole during School Council meetings
Resources and Budget	Provided on an as-needed basis through approval from Council
Deliverables	- Ensure smooth operation of food programs